
 
 

 
 

 
NOTIFICATION TO ATTEND MEETING OF THE CENTRAL AREA COMMITTEE 

 
TO BE HELD IN THE COUNCIL CHAMBER, CITY HALL, DAME STREET, DUBLIN 2. 

 
ON TUESDAY 13 FEBRUARY 2018 AT 10.00 AM 

 

 
AGENDA 

 
TUESDAY 13 FEBRUARY 2018

  PAGE 
 
1   With reference to the minutes of the Central Area Committee meeting held on 9th 

January, 2018   
 

3 - 8 

2   Questions to the Area Manager   
 

9 - 12 

3   With reference to a presentation - Draft Greening Strategy   
 

 

4   With reference to a presentation - Dublin Docklands Update   
 

 

5   With reference to the proposed disposal of plot of ground at 9 Granby Place, 
Dublin 1   
 

13 - 16 

6   With reference to the minutes of the Traffic Advisory Group held on 30th January, 
2018   
 

17 - 20 

7   With reference to updates on the following - Public Domain Section, North East 
Inner City Programme Office, North West and North East Inner City Housing 
Office, Grangegorman Development, Central Area Age Friend and Central Area 
Sports Report   
 

21 - 44 

8   With reference to the Central Area Discretionary Fund 2018   
 

45 - 46 

9   With reference to Central Area Works Programmes  - Parks and Roads 
Maintenance 2018   
 

47 - 50 

10   With reference to a proposal to initiate the procedure for the Extinguishment of the 
Public Right of Way over a laneway to the rear of 50 to 55 North Great Clarence 
Street and to the rear of 6-12 North William Street, Dublin 1.   
 

51 - 52 

11   With reference to Central Area Community Grants Scheme 2018   
 

53 - 58 

12   With reference to Motions to the Area Manager   
 

59 - 60 

 





1 
 

 
 

 
MINUTES OF THE CENTRAL AREA COMMITTEE MEETING 

 
HELD ON TUESDAY 9 JANUARY 2018 

 
 

 
 
1   With reference to the minutes of the Central Area Committee meeting held 

on 12th December, 2017 
 
ORDER: Agreed. 
 

 

2   Questions to the Area Manager 
 
ORDER: Noted 
 

 

3   With reference to a presentation by the National College of Ireland 
 
ORDER: Presentation noted. 
 

 

4   With reference to the minutes of the Traffic Advisory Group held on 19th 
December, 2017 
 
ORDER: Reports noted. 
 

 

5   With reference to updates on the following - Public Domain Section, North 
East Inner City Programme Office, North West and North East Inner City 
Housing Office, Grangegorman Development, Central Area Age Friendly  
and Central Area Sports Report. 
 
ORDER: Reports noted. 
 

 

6   With reference to a request for a nomination to the North Inner City Drugs 
Task Force 
 
ORDER: Deferred until February. 
 

 

7   With reference to Motions to the Area Manager 
 

Motion in the name of Councillor Nial Ring  
 

That this Committee, in recognising the status of 2018 as “Bliain na Gaeilge” 
agrees that Councillors and Officials should endeavour to promote the Irish 
language wherever possible in its meetings, communications, dealings with the 
public etc.  As a first step the Central Area Office should have all signage in both 
Irish and English and an effort should be made to facilitate any member of the 
public who wishes to conduct their business through Irish. 

 

Page 3



2 
 

ORDER: Report to Councillor. 
 

 
Motion in the name of Councillor Nial Ring  
 

That this Committee agrees that a suitable housing development in the North 
Inner City should be named after Liam O’Rinn (Liam Ring).  This is to recognise 
his role, (like that of Peadar Kearney and Patrick Heeney who have had housing 
complexes named after them), in the National Anthem, Amhran na bhFiann, given 
that he, like Kearney and Heeney, was from the North Inner City. 
ORDER: Report to Councillor. 

 
Motion in the name of Councillor Ciaran Cuffe 
 

That this Committee invites in the Office of Public Works, given that the Phoenix 
Park is used by many residents of the Stoneybatter area for recreation, to outline 
what they can do to improve facilities for pedestrians and cyclists in the park, such 
as introducing zebra crossings, junction improvements or reorganisation of cycling 
facilities given that several tragic collisions have taken place in the Park in recent 
years. 
ORDER: Agreed.  Letter to be sent to OPW. 

 
Motion in the name of Councillor Gary Gannon 
 

That this Committee agrees to allocate €50,000 of our Discretionary Fund budget 
to initiate a process of consultation with the surviving women that were 
incarcerated in Magdalene Laundries throughout the State, so that they may 
decide for themselves how they wish their experiences to be memorialised at the 
site of the former Magdalene Laundry on Sean McDermott Street. 

 

 ORDER: Agreed. 
 

 
Councillor Ray McAdam 
Chairperson 
Tuesday 9 January 2018 
 
 
 
Attendance: 
 
Members: Members: Members: 
Ray McAdam (Chairperson)   
Christy Burke Ciaran Cuffe Gaye Fagan 
Gary Gannon Nial Ring Eilis Ryan 
 
Officers   
   
 
Apologies:    
Janice Boylan   
 
Non-Members:    
   
 

Page 4



Motions with Replies 
Central Area Committee Meeting 

12
th

 December, 2017 
 
 

Item   1 
 

Motion in the name of Councillor Nial Ring 
 

That this Committee instructs the Chief Executive to write to the Glasnevin Trust and 
ask if it their intention to include further names on the so called 1916 Memorial Wall in 
Glasnevin Cemetery and, if so, to detail what names are being considered for 
inclusion, and if public consultation will take place on any proposed addition of 
names. 

 
Report 
 
A letter will be forwarded to the Glasnevin Trust if the members agree the terms of 
the motion. 
 
Item   2 

 
Motion in the name of Councillor Nial Ring 
 

That this Committee supports the submission made by me to the Seanad Public 
Consultation Committee in respect of its public consultation on the Status, Treatment 
and Use of the National Anthem. The main points made in the submission are as 
follows: 

 
"http://scanmail.trustwave.com/?c=6600&d=0Y-
c2i6VUIiqI4lAMs_Vu7nDkEvxCvOD94rnd5cygA&s=342&u=http%3a%2f%2f1%2eIn 
my opinion, there should be no changes made to either Irish or English version. I 
have read and heard of proposals to change wording to lessen the militaristic tone of 
the Anthem but, in deference to those who wrote and translated the Anthem, we 
should not interfere with their work. 

 
Also, some people have quite mistakenly assumed that the first line of the chorus 
“Sine Fianna Fáil…” was written after the foundation of the Fianna Fáil political party 
in 1926 and that somehow the name of the fledgling party could have influenced his 
translation work. This is absolutely untrue as my Granduncle first worked on the 
translation in 1916 and completed his work before 1923, well before the foundation of 
Fianna Fáil. 

 
1.The foregoing statement is not just based on family knowledge and lore (a daughter 
of Liam is still alive and well). Historian Ruth Sherry, in her article entitled “The Story 
of the National Anthem”, published in History Ireland (Issue 1, Spring 1996) states 
that Liam Ó Rinn’s translation was published in the army magazine, An tÓglach, on 
3rd November 1923. More persuasive and significant is the fact that an almost 
identical text was printed in the Freeman’s Journal on 3rd April 1923, under Ó Rinn's 
pen name "Coinneach".  

 
2. The Government should issue guidelines on the use of the National Anthem. This, I 
believe, should be on the lines of the guidelines issues in relation to the National 
Flag. The guidelines should also include reference to standing at attention (and how 
to do so) when the National Anthem is being played. It is galling to observe 
sportsmen and sportswomen standing “at ease” or with arms around each other 
whilst the Anthem is being played. Simple guidelines on this would give the Anthem 
the due respect it deserves. 

 

Page 5



3. I would support the National Anthem being enshrined officially in legislation in the 
Irish language. 

 
4. I would ask that the Committee strongly consider recommending that the National 
Anthem be made a compulsory part of the education curriculum and enshrined in 
legislation to ensure its implementation. 

 
5. I would submit that the guidelines, if agreed and published, should be in booklet 
format and distributed to every household in Ireland. 

 
6. The success of the presentation of the National Flag to every school in the country 
to commemorate/celebrate the 1916 Rising has been widely acknowledged. I would 
submit that the committee recommends a similar programme for the National 
Anthem". 

 
I have circulated the full document I sent to the Committee separately but the above 
are my actual submissions. The Committee intends to hold public hearings on 
Tuesday 5th December and I have been invited to attend and contribute to this public 
hearing. 

 
Report 

 
This is a matter for the members to agree or otherwise. 
 
Item   3 

 
Motion in the name of Councillor Ciaran Cuffe 
 

That this Committee expresses its concern about the delays in SICAP funding in the 
inner city and requests that the Senior Management Team resolve this issue without 
delay and ensure that the issues referenced in the Mulvey Report and elsewhere are 
resolved without further delay. 
 
Report 

 
The Social Inclusion and Community Activation Programme 2018 – 2022 was subject 
to a national public procurement, with a deadline of 6

th
 October 2017 for submission 

of tenders.  The Dublin City Local Community Development Committee (LCDC) 
ratified the outcome of that process at its meeting on 9

th
 November and notification 

letters were subsequently issued to tenderers for each of the five Dublin City ‘Lots’ on 
24

th
 November. 

 
The Dublin City LCDC and the Council Executive can confirm that the Dublin Inner 
City Community Co-Operative Society have been informed of the outcome of the 
public procurement process for SICAP 2018 – 2022 for Lot 2.5 Inner City and of the 
LCDC proposal to enter into a negotiated procedure.  Pending the response of the 
Dublin Inner City Community Co-Operative Society to that proposal by 08 December 
2017, it has been confirmed to the Dublin Inner City Community Co-Operative Society 
that current SICAP funding can be extended up to 31

st
 March 2018 in order to 

facilitate a negotiated procedure and to ensure that there is no disruption to services 
while the process is brought to conclusion. 
 
Item   4 

 
Motion in the name of Councillor Janice Boylan 
 

That this Area Committee calls for a full investigation into the road layout and traffic 
light system at Hanlon’s Corner on the North Circular Road due to the high level of 
near misses, crashes and residents concerns. 
 

Page 6



 
Report 
 
It has been recommended to alter the traffic signals to allow an early cut off on North 
Circular Road westbound amounting to 6 seconds. This means that westbound traffic 
will be stopped 6 seconds prior to eastbound traffic. This will allow vehicles and 
cyclists to safely clear the junction eastbound including right turn movements while 
westbound traffic is stopped.  

 
It has also been recommended to rescind the most westerly 6m of the yellow box 
opposite Annamoe road to allow cars to legally stop before the traffic lights. This 
should reduce the amount of westbound vehicles breaking the amber light. 
 
Item   5 

 
Motion in the name of Councillor Janice Boylan 
 

That this Area Committee calls on the Co-op and the LCDC to engage in meaningful 
discussions re the SICCAP funding so they can come up with a strategy that will 
resolve all issues and concerns. 

 
Report 

 
The Social Inclusion and Community Activation Programme 2018 – 2022 was subject 
to a national public procurement, with a deadline of 6

th
 October 2017 for submission 

of tenders.  The Dublin City Local Community Development Committee (LCDC) 
ratified the outcome of that process at its meeting on 9

th
 November and notification 

letters were subsequently issued to tenderers for each of the five Dublin City ‘Lots’ on 
24

th
 November. 

 
The Dublin City LCDC and the Council Executive can confirm that the Dublin Inner 
City Community Co-Operative Society have been informed of the outcome of the 
public procurement process for SICAP 2018 – 2022 for Lot 2.5 Inner City and of the 
LCDC proposal to enter into a negotiated procedure.  Pending the response of the 
Dublin Inner City Community Co-Operative Society to that proposal by 08 December 
2017, it has been confirmed to the Dublin Inner City Community Co-Operative Society 
that current SICAP funding can be extended up to 31

st
 March 2018 in order to 

facilitate a negotiated procedure and to ensure that there is no disruption to services 
while the process is brought to conclusion. 
 
Item   6 

 
Motion in the name of Councillor Janice Boylan 
 

That this Area Committee calls on the Minister for Justice to immediately reinstate 
any funding withdrawn to An Garda Siochana in relation to overtime.  We already 
don’t have enough Gardaí on our streets and are dealing with serious levels of crime 
and antisocial activity. 

 
Report 

 
Overtime budget announced by Justice Minister on November 30

th
 in the amount of 

€42M. 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 7





Question to Chief Executive     Central Area Committee Meeting 
      13

th
 February 2018 

 
 
Q1 Councillor Christy Burke 
 

To ask the Chief Executive (details supplied) 
 
Q2 Councillor Christy Burke 
 

To ask the Chief Executive (details supplied) 
 
Q3 Councillor Christy Burke 
 

To ask the Chief Executive (details supplied) 
 
Q4 Councillor Christy Burke 
 

To ask the Chief Executive (details supplied) 
 
Q5 Councillor Christy Burke 
 

To ask the Chief Executive (details supplied) 
 
Q6 Councillor Christy Burke 
 

To ask the Chief Executive (details supplied) 
 

Q7 Councillor Christy Burke 
 

To ask the Chief Executive (details supplied) 
 

Q8 Councillor Christy Burke 
 

To ask the Chief Executive (details supplied) 
 

Q9 Councillor Christy Burke 
 

To ask the Chief Executive (details supplied) 
 

Q10 Councillor Christy Burke 
 

To ask the Chief Executive (details supplied) 
 

Q11 Councillor Janice Boylan 
 

To ask the Chief Executive (details supplied) 
 

Q12 Councillor Janice Boylan 
 

To ask the Chief Executive (details supplied) 
 

Q13 Councillor Janice Boylan 
 

To ask the Chief Executive (details supplied) 
 

Q14 Councillor Janice Boylan 
 

To ask the Chief Executive (details supplied) 
 

Page 9



Q15 Councillor Ciaran Cuffe 
 

To ask the Chief Executive (details supplied) 
 

Q16 Councillor Ciaran Cuffe 
 

To ask the Chief Executive (details supplied) 
 

Q17 Councillor Ciaran Cuffe 
 

To ask the Chief Executive (details supplied) 
 

Q18 Councillor Ciaran Cuffe 
 

To ask the Chief Executive (details supplied) 
 

Q19 Councillor Ciaran Cuffe 
 

To ask the Chief Executive (details supplied) 
 

Q20 Councillor Ciaran Cuffe 
 

To ask the Chief Executive (details supplied) 
 

Q21 Councillor Ciaran Cuffe 
 

To ask the Chief Executive (details supplied) 
 

Q22 Councillor Ciaran Cuffe 
 

To ask the Chief Executive (details supplied) 
 

Q23 Councillor Ciaran Cuffe 
 

To ask the Chief Executive (details supplied) 
 

Q24 Councillor Ciaran Cuffe 
 

To ask the Chief Executive (details supplied) 
 

Q25 Councillor Ciaran Cuffe 
 

To ask the Chief Executive (details supplied) 
 

Q26 Councillor Ray McAdam 
 

To ask the Chief Executive (details supplied) 
 

Q27 Councillor Ray McAdam 
 

To ask the Chief Executive (details supplied) 
 

Q28 Councillor Ray McAdam 
 

To ask the Chief Executive (details supplied) 
 

Q29 Councillor Ray McAdam 
 

To ask the Chief Executive (details supplied) 
 

Page 10



Q30 Councillor Ray McAdam 
 

To ask the Chief Executive (details supplied) 
 

Q31 Councillor Ray McAdam 
 

To ask the Chief Executive (details supplied) 
 

Q32 Councillor Ray McAdam 
 

To ask the Chief Executive (details supplied) 
 

Q33 Councillor Ray McAdam 
 

To ask the Chief Executive (details supplied) 
 

Q34 Councillor Ray McAdam 
 

To ask the Chief Executive (details supplied) 
 

Q35 Councillor Ray McAdam 
 

To ask the Chief Executive (details supplied) 
 

Q36 Councillor Nial Ring 
 

To ask the Chief Executive (details supplied) 
 

Q37 Councillor Nial Ring 
 

To ask the Chief Executive (details supplied) 
 

Q38 Councillor Nial Ring 
 

To ask the Chief Executive (details supplied) 
 

Q39 Councillor Nial Ring 
 

To ask the Chief Executive (details supplied) 
 

Q40 Councillor Nial Ring 
 

To ask the Chief Executive (details supplied) 
 

Q41 Councillor Nial Ring 
 

To ask the Chief Executive (details supplied) 
 

Q42 Councillor Nial Ring 
 

To ask the Chief Executive (details supplied) 
 
Q43 Councillor Nial Ring 
 

To ask the Chief Executive (details supplied) 
 

Q44 Councillor Nial Ring 
 

To ask the Chief Executive (details supplied) 
 

Page 11



Q45 Councillor Nial Ring 
 

To ask the Chief Executive (details supplied) 
 

Q46 Councillor Gary Gannon 
 

To ask the Chief Executive (details supplied) 
 

Q47 Councillor Gary Gannon 
 

To ask the Chief Executive (details supplied) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 12



Page 13





                          Development Department 
                                                    Civic Offices 
 
                                         06//02/2018 
To the Chairperson and Members of 
The Central Area Committee 
 
Meeting:  13th February 2018 
 
Item No:   
 
With reference to the proposed disposal of plot of ground at 9 Granby Place, Dublin 1 

_________________________________________________________________________ 
 
An application has been received from City Serviced Offices Limited to purchase a plot of 
ground at 9 Granby Place, Dublin 1. This plot of ground is part of a former laneway and has 
now been incorporated into their property. The plot of ground in question is shown 
delineated in red on Map Index No. SM-2018-0053. 
 
The Chief Valuer has reported that agreement has now been reached with AMOSS 
Solicitors on behalf of City Serviced Officers Limited to dispose of the Council’s interest in 
this plot of ground subject to the following conditions:  
 

1. That the subject site is situated on Granby Place with an approximate area of 16 m2 
as shown delineated in red and shaded pink on Map Index No. SM-2018-0053.   

 
2. That the disposal price will be €5,000 (five thousand euro) plus VAT if applicable. 

 
3. That the purchaser will be responsible for Dublin City Council’s Valuer’s fee of €1,600 

(one thousand six hundred euro) plus VAT.  
 

4. That the purchaser will be responsible for the City Council’s reasonable legal costs 
and outlays.   

 
  
 
The disposal shall be subject to any such covenants and conditions as the Law Agent in his 
discretion shall stipulate. 
 
No agreement enforceable at law is created or intended to be created until an exchange of 
contracts has taken place. 
 
 
Paul Clegg                  8th February 2018 
Executive Manager   Date    

Page 15





$nf5empb4.xls

Central Area Feb 18 

Agenda 13/02/18 

(TAG Date: 30/01/18)

Item TAMS 

Ref

Sharepoint 

Ref

Request Road Post 

Code

Topic Request Description Request

by

date_received TAG Result TAG Comments sec

1 7000097 Double 

Yellow 

Lines

O'DEVANEY 

GARDENS (C)

Dublin 7 Double 

Yellow 

Lines

From Montpellier Park to the 

NCR entrance to O'Devaney 

Gdns.

Gardai 31/10/17 12:13 Not 

Recommended

A site inspection was carried out on Tuesday 10th 

October, and taking the opinion of the Gardaí on 

board, the Traffic Advisory Group would be 

reluctant to remove the parking as described as it 

contradicts best engineering practice:



The speed at which drivers travel is principally 

influenced by the characteristics of the street 

environment. The carriageway in question is quite 

wide and visually “open.” On-street parking acts as 

a means of narrowing the carriageway enhancing 

the sense of place. This serves to manage drivers 

speed in a manner that does not rely on extensive 

regulatory controls and physically intrusive 

measures for enforcement. Such environments are 

referred to as being self-regulating.



In short, if parking was removed it would serve to 

encourage speeding, and as such, it is not 

recommended to remove parking in this area.

0

2 7000693 Double 

Yellow 

Lines

HOLY CROSS 

AVENUE (C)

Dublin 3 Double 

Yellow 

Lines

Double yellow lines on the 

corner of both sides of the 

road.

Member 

of the 

Public

30/11/17 13:02 Not 

Recommended

The request is not recommended for the following 

reason(s):

Dublin City Council’s current position is to not 

introduce parking restrictions where restrictions are 

already covered under the law, as this would lead to 

a proliferation of same and additional expense due 

to maintenance, etc.

Under  the ROAD TRAFFIC (TRAFFIC AND 

PARKING) REGULATIONS, 1997:

“A vehicle shall not be parked within 5 metres of a 

road junction.”

“A vehicle shall not be parked in any place, position 

or manner that will result in the vehicle obstructing 

an entrance or an exit for vehicles to or from a 

premises, save with the consent of the occupier of 

such premises.”

“A vehicle shall not be parked in a manner in which 

it will interfere with the normal flow of traffic or which 

obstructs or endangers other traffic.”

Infringements of the act should be reported to 

Dublin Street Parking Services as they occur.

0

Page 1 of 4

P
age 17



3 7001003 Yellow Box PARNELL 

STREET (C)

Dublin 1 Yellow 

Box

Yellow box to stop traffic 

blocking the rught turn 

coming out of King's Inn 

towards Capel Street

Internal 22/12/17 10:25 Recommended It is recommended to install a yellow box on the 

north side of Parnell St. on the Parnell St.  / King’s 

Inns St. junction to facilitate vehicles turning right 

from King’s Inns St. to Parnell St.

Stat: 

Install a Yellow Box on the north side of Parnell St. 

on the Parnell St.  / King’s Inns St. junction (Yellow 

box = 5.5 m x 5.3 m). 

0

4 7001458 Traffic 

Lights

MAYOR STREET 

UPPER (C)

Dublin 1 Traffic 

Lights 

(new)

traffic signals and other 

markings

Member 

of the 

Public

29/01/18 10:21 Recommended MAYOR STREET UPPER: 1)Traffic Signals	Fully signalised junction - 

junction with North Wall Avenue.

2) Tram Only Section of the carriageway 	On the northern side of the 

carriageway of Mayor Street Upper eastbound between the junction of 

Castleforbes Road and North Wall Avenue 

3) No Right Turn	From Mayor Street Upper westbound to Castleforbes 

Road northbound 

4)24 Hour Clearway	On the southern side of the carriageway of Mayor 

Street Upper eastbound between the junction of Castleforbes Road and 

North Wall Avenue (commencing at the signal stopline at the junction 

with North Wall Avenue and ending at the signal stop line at the junction 

with Castleforbes Road,  extending westwards for 107.5m) 

NORTH WALL AVENUE: 1)Two way traffic flow	Between Sheriff 

Street Upper and North Wall Quay

2)Yellow Box Marking	At the junction with Mayor Street Upper (the box 

is approximately 10.6m x 12m and is 127.2sq m)

CASTLEFORBES ROAD: 1)No Right Turn	From Castleforbes Road 

northbound to Mayor Street Upper eastbound

2) No Left Turn	From Castleforbes Road southbound to Mayor Street 

Upper eastbound

0

5 90046443 SP_33700 Stop Sign HALSTON 

STREET (C)

Dublin 7 Stop 

Sign

Request for a stop sign to be 

re-located nearer the 

junction.

Member 

of the 

Public

12/09/16 11:05 Not 

Recommended

The Department of Transport's ‘Traffic Signs 

Manual’ recommends that a Stop Sign may be 

installed up to distance of 6m from a junction. 

Following a site assessment, the Stop Sign on the 

south side of the Halston Street / Cuckoo Lane was 

deemed to be in the most suitable location. 

Therefore, it is not recommended to relocate the 

Stop Sign at this location.

0

6 90046701 SP_35184 Parking 

Bays

SUSANVILLE 

ROAD (C)

Dublin 3 P&D/Per

mit 

Parking

on the road. Member 

of the 

Public

21/11/16 17:45 Recommended Accepted at ballot, Mon-Sun 07.00-24.00. 57 on 

register of electors, 30 votes returned, 20 for and 7 

against, 3 late. The pro-rata vote was 20 for and 7 

against.

1

7 90046793 SP_35601 Double 

Yellow 

Lines

PARNELL 

STREET (C)

Dublin 1 Double 

Yellow 

Lines

along the northside the 

junction with North Great 

George’s Street in an 

easterly direction towards 

Hill Street.

Member 

of the 

Public

19/12/16 11:13 Not 

Recommended

Following a site visit of Parnell Street on 

02/01/2018, it was observed that the existing 

Double Yellow Lines on the north side of Parnell 

Street at the Hill Street / Parnell Street junction 

have been sufficiently repainted. No further action 

required.

0

8 90047774 SP_36630 Disabled 

Parking 

Bay

BLACKHALL 

STREET (C)

Dublin 7 Disab 

Park Bay 

Resident

ial

Outside No. 25. Member 

of the 

Public

21/02/17 17:00 Recommended It is recommended to install a Disabled Bay outside 

house no. 25 Blackhall Street.

Stat(s):

Install a Disabled Bay (Parallel Parking) on the 

south side of Blackhall Street, from a point 46 

meters west of the Blackhall Street / Queen Street 

junction, extending westwards for a distance of 6 

meters (for the length of the indented bay).

0

P
age 18



$nf5empb4.xls

9 90049203 SP_38076 Yellow Box BACHELORS 

WALK (C)

Dublin 1 Yellow 

Box 

(Extend)

for right-turning buses. Member 

of the 

Public

17/05/17 13:39 Recommended It is recommended to extend the existing yellow box 

on Bachelors Walk to better facilitate buses 

changing lanes.

Stat:

Extend the existing yellow box on the left hand lane 

on Bachelors Walk (located approx. 25 meters west 

of Litton Lane), westwards for a distance of 4 

meters.

0

10 90049345 SP_38220 Yellow Box NEW WAPPING 

STREET (C)

Dublin 1 Yellow 

Box

outside entrance to Central 

Bank car park. 

Member 

of the 

Public

22/05/17 16:42 Recommended

It is recommended to install a Yellow Box on New 

Wapping Street at the Central Bank vehicular 

entrance.

1. Install a Yellow Box on New Wapping Street, 

from a point 53 m south from the Mayor Street 

Upper / New Wapping Street junction, southwards 

for a distance of 9 m, and westwards for a distance 

of 6.5 m.

1

11 90049596 SP_38472 Parking 

Bays

BAYVIEW 

AVENUE (C)

Dublin 3 P&D/Per

mit 

Parking

Introduction of a Scheme on 

Bayview Avenue, North 

Strand. 

Member 

of the 

Public

01/06/17 18:03 Recommended Introduction of Pay and Display and Permit Parking 

proposed, subject to ballot of residents indicating a 

majority of the proposal.

0

12 90050983 SP_39884 One Way 

System

ROYAL CANAL 

BANK (NW/C)

Dublin 7 One-

Way 

System

One-way system for Royal 

Canal Bank.

Councillo

r

24/08/17 13:18 Not 

Recommended

The current traffic management arrangements for 

Royal Canal Bank are as follows:

1.	Royal Canal Bank between Phibsborough Road 

and Glengarriff Parade is a two-way road with traffic 

permitted to travel in both directions. 

2.	At the Royal Canal Bank / Glengarriff Parade 

junction there are ‘No Entry’ [Except Cyclists] signs 

to prevent cut-through traffic from Phibsborough 

Road to North Circular Road.

3.	Royal Canal Bank between the Royal Canal 

Bank / Glengarriff Parade junction and North 

Circular Road is a two-way road with traffic 

permitted to travel in both directions. 

These traffic management arrangements ensure 

access to Phibsborough Road and North Circular 

Road for the majority of residents on Royal Canal 

Bank. 

The introduction of a One-Way Traffic System 

along Royal Canal Bank may result in severe 

inconvenience to residents due to the extra distance 

travelled.  It may also result in increased traffic 

congestion and conflicts for pedestrians and 

vehicles.

One-Way Systems typically encourage traffic to flow 

at greater speeds and does not contribute to 

enhance the road safety for pedestrians and 

cyclists. Therefore, it is not recommended to make 

any changes to the traffic management 

arrangements.

2

Page 3 of 4

P
age 19



13 90051392 SP_40296 Weight 

Restriction

s

CASTLEFORBES 

ROAD (C)

Dublin 1 3.5 

Tonne 

Limit

on the road.  Member 

of the 

Public

14/09/17 13:32 Not 

Recommended

This road facilitates HGV's wishing to access the 

P&O ferry terminal in Dublin Port.  However, an 

upgrade is planned which will involve the 

replacement of the Point Depot roundabout and the 

provision of a new access/exit to and from the port.   

Once this is in place, it will be possible to consider 

the provision of HGV restrictions on Castleforbes 

Road                                                                                                                            

Speed limits are governed by Bye-Laws, the making 

of which is a function reserved for Councillors. 

Speed Limit Bye-Laws are periodically reviewed. 

This process involves public consultation etc. and 

takes at least six months. Requests for changes to 

the speed limits in particular areas or streets can 

only be considered as part of a full review of the 

Bye-Laws and any relevant area wide schemes. 

The current Special Speed Limit Bye-Laws came 

into effect on 31st May 2017. Any requests for 

changes to speed limits will be kept on file for 

examination as part of the next review. No date has 

been fixed for same.

0

14 90051713 SP_40627 Yellow Box NORTH WALL 

QUAY (C)

Dublin 1 Yellow 

Box

at the junction of New 

Wapping Street. 

Member 

of the 

Public

05/10/17 00:00 Recommended It is recommended to install a yellow box on the 

North Wall Quay / New Wapping St. junction to 

facilitate vehicles turning from New Wapping St. to 

North Wall Quay.

Stat:

Install a Yellow Box on the North Wall Quay / New 

Wapping St. junction, from a point 3.5 meters east 

from the north-east corner of the North Wall Quay / 

New Wapping St.  junction, extending southwards 

for 12 meters and westwards for 13.5 meters 

(Yellow box = 12 m * 13.5 m). 

0

P
age 20



Environmental Services Unit Report February 2018 
 

 
 
Litter Warden Statistics 
 
There were a total of 32 Fines issued by the area based Litter Wardens in the Central Area 
for littering offences in the period 1st January 2018 – 31st  January 2018 
 
194  Streets were inspected 
486 Dumped bags were removed 
625  Dumped bags were investigated 
31   Dumped or wrongly presented bags were labelled with warning stickers 
 
Quarterly Comparison 2018 

Month 
Streets 
Inspected 

Bags 
removed  

Bags  
Investigated  

Bags 
Stickered 

Fines 
Issued 

January 194 486 625 31 32 
 
Quarterly Comparison 2017 

Month 
Streets 
Inspected 

Bags 
removed  

Bags  
Investigated  

Bags 
Stickered 

Fines 
Issued 

January  153 456 476 45 18 
 
 
Litter Hotline/CRM 
In the period 1st Jan –31st Jan 2018, 318 incidents were reported via Litter Hotline/CRM for 
central area. 
 

 

Page 21



 
 
 
 
 
Graffiti Removal  
 
Graffiti has been removed from the following areas using our Waste Management 
Services from 2nd January 2018 – 31st January 2018 
 
Cavendish Row, D.1 
O’Rahilly Parade, D.1 
North Cumberland Street, D.1 
Rutland Place, D.1 
Sheriff Street Upper, D.1 
Charles Lane, D.1 
NCR, D.1 
Strandville Avenue, D.3 
Springarden Street, D.3 
West Road, D.3 
Church Road, D.3 
Dorset Street Upper, D.1 and D.7 
Balls Lane, D.7 
Blackhall Street, D.7 
Rathdown Lane, D.7 
Henrietta Lane, D.7 
Brunswick Street North, D.7 
Phibsborough Road, D.7 
Conyingham Road, D.7 
Phoenix Park, D.7 
Arbour Hill, D.7 
Ard Ri Road, D.7 
Moira Road, D.7 
Godfrey Place, D.7 
Manor Street, D.7 
 
 
 
Graffiti has been removed from the following areas using our Corporate Contractor 
from 2nd January 2018 – 31st January 2018 
 
Sean Macdermott Street swimming pool, Dublin 1 
Saint Marys Mansions, Dublin 1 
Belvidere Avenue, D.1 
NCR, Dublin 1 
Fitzgibbon Court, D.1 
Oxmanstown Road, D.7 
 
 
Graffiti has been removed from the following areas using our Probation Services from 
2nd January 2018 – 31st January 2018 
 
Parkgate Street, D.7 
 
 

Page 22



Community Cleanup 
Central area is working with community groups organising cleanups in Sheriff Street.  
Foundation for a drug free world held a cleanup at Guild Street junction of Sheriff Street. 
Overgrown materials were cut and removed. 
 
 

 
 
 

Page 23



 
 
 

 

 

Dublin City Neighbourhood Awards 2018 

The Dublin City Neighbourhoods Competition is run by the City Council to acknowledge in a 
meaningfully way the work done across the city by communities to enhance their 
neighbourhood. At a corporate level, the competition is used to foster a sense of civic pride, 
place and community and also to promote environmental awareness. 

Completed entries to be returned to Dublin City Council, Waste Management, Services 
Division, 68/71 Marrowbone Lane, Dublin 8, or emailed to bernie.lillis@dublincity.ie 

There are two key categories we would like more entries in Central area 

Business competition (Enhancing shop fronts)  

Schools competition  

 

 

Applications should be marked: 

"CITY NEIGHBOURHOODS COMPETITION 2018"

 

The Dublin City Neighbourhoods Competition is an annual competition for communities, 
schools and businesses in the city organised by Dublin City Council. It is an Area based 
competition with categories judged initially on an Area basis. The best entrants from each of 
the 5 City Council administrative Areas are selected to go forward to a citywide competition. 

Page 24

mailto:bernie.lillis@dublincity.ie


Applications are invited under the following categories: Residential competition, special 
categories, business competition, schools competition. The prize fund for this 
competition amounts to €75,000. 

It is hugely important that all residents and business association work together to encourage 
people to improve their environment.  It is the existence of an effective and enthusiastic City 
Neighbourhoods Committee that improves our local areas and the quality of life of the 
residents and develops good relationships with the local authority, schools and other 
business associations. 

 
 
 
 
 
John McPartlan 
Public Domain Enforcement Officer 
 

Page 25





Page 1 of 2 

 

 
 

 
Dublin City Council, Central Area Office, 

51-53 Sean MacDermott Street Lower, 
Dublin 1. 

 
06/02/2018 

 
To the Chairperson and Members of 
the Central Area Committee 

 
 

NORTH EAST INNER CITY PROGRAMME OFFICE REPORT 
 
 

Following the comprehensive report presented to the January meeting of the Committee the 
update is as follows: 
 
A provision has been made by the Department of Rural & Community Development (RAPID 
Programme) for a funding allocation of €2.5 M for the North East Inner City Initiative in 2018.  
This brings the total funds allocated since establishment in 2016 to €9.8M. 
 
A budget Sub-Group has been established, chaired by Department of the Taoiseach, to 
review proposals from the four working groups for 2018 funding and make recommendations 
to the Programme Implementation Board.  The following proposals, aligned to delivery of 
actions set out in the Mulvey report, were approved at the Board meeting held on 31st 
January 2018.  Total approved €1.35M. 
 

 Ana Liffey Drug Project - Assertive Case Management (NEIC Specific) - €100,000 
This 1-year project aimed at tackling on-street drug dealing blackspots was approved in 
2017 and is up and running since Sept. 2017 at a total cost of €155,000.  The initial phase 
was funded (€55,000) from the 2017 allocation and this 2018 funding will see the project 
through to completion circa. Sept. 2018. 
 

 North Inner City Folklore Project - €30,000 
The Folklore Project is now set-up and operating from Unit 1, The Forge.  The 2018 funding 
will be used to cover costs associated with the Unit i.e. rental and utilities.  The balance will 
be used to fund development work with the project with an initial focus on professional 
cataloguing of existing material to be followed by report and recommendations on future 
direction.  Other sources of funding are also being explored. 
 

 Programme of annual community events – €200,000 
Following a successful year of events in 2017, e.g. The Big Scream Halloween festival (5 
events), The Last Picnic and local summer and Christmas events, a similar initial allocation 
has been approved for 2018.  The Halloween Festival will remain as a flagship event and 
proposals for other events will be brought to the Board for approval in due course.  In the 
meantime the Programme Office is funding a free family event to celebrate the Chinese New 
Year at Hill Street Family Resource Centre on Saturday 17th February 2018 from 2:00 p.m. – 
7:00 p.m.  All welcome. 
 

 NEIC Community Grants 2018 - €100,000 
The 2017 Community Grants Scheme was run successfully with 37 local projects awarded a 
total of €123,000.  The Scheme will be run again this year with similar criteria.  Details are 
being finalised and it is anticipated that it will open for applications before end Q1. 
 

Page 27



Page 2 of 2 

 

 Lourdes Daycare Centre - €300,000 
Following grant of planning permission in December 2017 funding for the delivery of the 
project to include internal alterations and extension at Lourdes Daycare Centre has been 
approved.  It is anticipated that work will commence on site before end Q1. 
 

 FAI Late Night Leagues €100,000 
Discussions are at an advanced stage with FAI, Dublin City Council and An Garda Siochána 
to deliver a ‘Football Diversionary Programme’ in the north east inner city specifically 
targeting young ‘at risk’ boys and girls to offer an alternative to crime via the power of 
football.  Pending finalisation of operational arrangements and recruitment processes it is 
estimated that the Programme will commence in Q2. 
 

 Charleville Mall Public Library Programmes – €110,000 
The Reader in Residence (€75,000) and Coderdojo Digital Skills (€35,000) programmes run 
by Dublin City Public Libraries at Charleville Mall in 2017 were deemed to be successful and 
will be repeated in a similar format in 2018.  It is a condition of this funding that the 
programmes be considered for mainstream funding in future years via Dublin City Council 
budgetary process. 
 

 Contribution to Iarnrod Éireann - €19,830.50 + VAT 
Further to work carried out on 6 bridges in 2017 Iarnród Éireann have costed cleanup of a 
further 9 no. bridges (Package No. 2) and requested co-funding of €19,830.50 +VAT from 
NEIC resources.  This request has been approved. 
 

 Programme Office activity costs - €75,000 
This allocation will fund the day to day activity costs of the Programme Office during 2018 to 
include costs associated with communications, branding, community engagement events 
etc.  Salary costs for staff members assigned to the Programme Office have remained with 
their respective organisations / Government Departments. 
 
 
Tall Ships Regatta 2018 – Business Sector €50,000 
The NEIC Business Sector, represented on the Programme Implementation Board by 
Feargal O’Rourke, PWC; has committed funding of €50,000 to fund costs of 50 trainees 
(over 18 yrs.) from NEIC communities to take part in the voyages of the Tall Ships Regatta 
2018 in association with Sail Training Ireland.  The event is scheduled to take place in June 
2018.  A recruitment process will be undertaken in consultation with Community Groups and 
Youth Services in the local area.  Information in relation to the Tall Ships Regatta can be 
found at http://www.sailtrainingireland.com/ 
 
If any further information is required in relation to the above projects please contact the 
Programme Office directly. 
 
 
Ursula Donnellan 
NEIC Programme Office 
Tel. 222 5312 
ursula.donnellan@dublincity.ie 
 
 

 

Page 28

http://www.sailtrainingireland.com/
mailto:ursula.donnellan@dublincity.ie


To the Chairperson and Members 
Of the Central Area Committee  
 
 
 

Housing Update January 2018 

Donal Barron Area Housing Manager 
 
Croke Villas 
  
We continue to work with the remaining residents (in the first block) in anticipation of 
their transfer to their new homes. Work is continuing on the site at 2-6 Ballybough Road to 
deliver 7 new housing units. It is anticipated that these works will be complete in Quarter 4 
2018.   
 
 
St. Mary’s Mansions 
  
This projected completion date is March 2019 
Ganson Building and Civil Engineering are now on site and early indication is that works will 
be completed on time.  
 
Vacant site, Railway Street 
  
Circle Voluntary Housing Association have finalised a proposed design for a new 
development of 38 Apartments on Railway Street. 
  
Circle VHA appointed a design team in mid June 2017 and moved forward with design, 
planning, finance and construction. A topographical survey of the area has now been 
completed but it is expected to take some time before any construction works take place. 
  
Ballybough House 
  
Substantial improvement works continue to be carried out to the dwelling flats in this 
complex and to upgrade the physical environment and improve measures to tackle anti 
social behaviour.  

 Upgrades included: 

 New Public Lighting.  

 Repairs of the stairwells and installation of new security doors/CCTV(now complete) 

 New playground and Amphitheatre improvements and landscaping 

 Painting Programme (Railings, Balcony Trims). 

 Pilot programme of converting flats (2 into one in some cases) and new fit to 
increase the living space within the dwelling.  

 
Works are complete on a new door entry system and we are costing replacement doors and 
windows in a situation whereby additional finance was secured. 
 
We are currently examining the potential of reconfiguring 2 flats into 1 large unit thus 
creating larger living spaces within the complex. Once this work has been completed and a 
report produced, it will be brought to the Department of Housing, Planning and Local 
Government for assessment with the view of upgrading all the dwellings as they become 
available. 
  

Page 29



We are also proposing to carry out precinct works consisting of the separation of each block 
by means of a wall & railings, and the provision of parking facilities, playgrounds, and green 
areas for each block. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Gloucester Place/Former IDA site 
  
Construction work commenced in late February 2016 and the project is progressing very well 
and the project is in the final stage, including snagging and signing off and will be ready to 
populate in the very short term. 
 
Castleforbes Square 
  
All the dwellings have been allocated, under the City Councils’ Allocation Scheme, and the 
complex enjoys full occupancy. 
  
  
Vacant Site at Poplar Row 
  
Works completion expected Q3 2019. 
  
The City Council have hoarded off the site and improved the look through Artwork similar to 
the Mud Island hoarding. 
  
  
Tom Clarke House  
  
The Area Office and Housing Department are in the process of finalising the public domain 
improvements on site. The Area Housing Office have also installed automated vehicular 
gates & pedestrian gates to eradicate illegal parking and enhance the security for the 
Residents. 
 
Summerhill (Older persons complex) 
  
Funding has been given, under contract of service, to plant and clean (moss and weeding) 
the front area of Summerhill Senior Citizens complex with works staring on Wed 8th of 
November 2017. This, in conjunction with the open green area at the rear of the complex, 
ensures the Summerhill complex maintains it fine history of award winning flower display and 
gardens.  
  
 
Brendan Behan Older Persons complex 
  
Funding has been approved for the upgrading and refurbishment of the community room at 
Brendan Behan Older Persons complex. This includes new flooring and general repairs.  
 

Page 30



 
Saint Laurence O’Toole Court  
 
The front garden area has been resurfaced with resin (on both side of railings), and the 
planting of flower beds and planters has been approved.  
 
The construction of ramps, at the entry point of dwellings has been completed for wheelchair 
access. The communal room has been fitted with a new front door. 
 
A new security gate has been constructed at the rear of the complex to stop the access and 
congregation of youths to the complex.      
 
 
Oriel Street Older Persons units 
 
The front garden has been resurfaced with resin, the fascia and soffit are being fully 
replaced.  
 
Works have started to have the external frontage of the 8 dwellings cleaned and thereafter 
painted (which includes the gable doors, front windows and the railings (front and rear). 
 
It has been proposed to have the bedding flowers and planters made available to residents 
that wish to avail of such gardening assistance.   
 

 

Sean Smith, Area Housing Manager 

 
Dominick Street Lower 
 
Detailed designs for 5-3 bed town houses, 67 apartments consisting of 5-3 bed, 50-2 bed 

and 12 1-bed units, a community facility and retail/commercial units with 47 car spaces at 

basement level on the eastern side of Dominick Street have been completed. The costings 

have been sent to the Department of Housing, Planning, Community and Local Government 

for approval to go to tender in January. Tender documentation is complete. Dublin City 

Council has commenced the tendering process  for our project in Dominick Street Lower by 

inviting Expressions of Interest for the Works contract. This stage will take approximately 12 

weeks and a maximum of six contractors will be shortlisted and invited to tender in Stage 2, 

subject to the financial approval from the Department of Housing Planning Community and 

Local Government. 

. 
Constitution Hill 
 
An internal design team has been set up to make a submission to the Department of 
Housing, Planning, Community and Local Government on a recommendation for some new 
build and refurbishment of this complex. We expect to send the Stage 1 report the 
Department of Housing, Planning, Community and Local Government this month for 
approval. 
 
 
 

Page 31



 
Dorset Street & Saint Marys Terrace 
 
The Department, after reviewing the consultant’s report, has advised that the cost of 
refurbishment was so close to the cost of demolition and new build that they requested that 
this option be further developed. The Stage 1 report is down with Department of Housing, 
Planning, Community and Local Government for approval of funding. Once approved, we will 
commence consultations with the local community and designs for Part 8 approval.  
 
Saint Michan’s House 
 
The painting of St Michan’s House is ongoing should be complete by the end of this month 
Fish Market site contractor onsite since beginning of February. 
 
Sean Foster Place 
 
The preferred bidder will be announced this month. Pending approval from the Department 
of Housing, Planning, Community and Local I expect a contractor to be on site in the next 
couple of months, it should take approximately 18 months to build the complex.  
 
Dominick Court 
 
Upgrading of the windows and doors in this complex has commenced. 
 
 

Dick Whelan, Area Housing Manager 

 

O’Devaney Gardens 

 

Tenders for the construction of 56 Social Housing units to be invited this month. Efforts 

continue to source suitable alternative accommodation for residents in the five remaining 

occupied flats. Next Consultative Forum meeting will take place on 21st February 2018. 

Bricins Park 
 
Phase 2 Flats shown to prospective tenants in advance of their completion. Units proving 
very popular and there will be no difficulty in letting. Handover of units in Phase 2 delayed 
pending resolution of minor snagging issues but the allocation of units should be completed 
by end of February. Works on Phase 3 have commenced. 

 
Aughrim Court 
 
 Landscaping works, financed under CAC Discretionary Funding, completed. 
 
Drumalee Court: 

 Supply & installation of new locking mechanisms at entry points completed and keys have 

been distributed to residents.  

 
 

 

 

Page 32



JANUARY 2018 

 

ESTATE MANAGEMENT  

  Housing Managers: Sean Smith     Donal Barron     Dick Whelan 

No of anti social complaints per 
1997 act  Drug related 

 
1 

 
1 

 
0 

No of anti social complaints per 
1997 act  not Drug related 

 
16 

 
4 

 
4 

No. of Complaints  
26 

 
10 

 
6 

Total Complaints 43 15 10 

 

No of anti social Interviews per 
1997 Act 

6 4 2 

No of other interviews 
 

7 2 1 

Total interviews 13 6 3 

    

 

No of requests for mediation 0 0 0 

No of complaints referred to the 
Central Unit for action 

0 0 0 

No of Section 20 Evictions 0 0 0 

 

Allocations 

Bands 3 & 3 2 3 0 

Medical  0 1 0 

Welfare 0 1 0 

Homeless 0 0 0 

Travellers 0 0 0 

 

Senior Citizens 

Bands 3 & 3 0 0 0 

Medical  0 0 0 

Welfare 0 0 0 

Homeless 0 0 0 

Travellers 0 0 0 

 

 

Page 33



 

 

 

Voids 

Housing Managers:  Sean Smith         Donal Barron     Dick Whelan 

Long Term 
Maintenance 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

Contracts 20 34 29 

Capital Projects 98 21 59 

    

 

 

 

Page 34



Central Area Office 

51/53 Sean McDermott Street 

Dublin 1 

 

 

5th February 2018 

 

To the Chairperson and Members of  

The Central Area Committee. 

 

 

GDA Report – February  Area Committee 

 

Dublin 7 Educate Together School and Surrounding Area  

 

Plans for the development of the new Dublin 7 Educate Together School are underway 

following the decision of An Bord Pleanála to increase the size of the school from 16 to 24 

classroom building. With the project advancing towards the planning stage the GDA is also 

looking at how the junction of Rathdown Road and Grangegorman Upper could be treated as 

part of the development. In 2015 the GDA went out to local residents to get their input into 

the plans for the area at the time. These plans have now changed in that there is no longer a 

proposal to make Grangegorman Upper one way. Therefore the GDA have again gone door 

to door in the area to get people’s input. This is now complete and the plans are at the final 

design phase. Once this is done the GDA will submit two planning applications, one within 

the SDZ for the school itself and one standard planning application for the junction. 

 

 

Brian O’Connell 
Administrative Officer 

Central Area 

 

  

  

Page 35





Central Area Office 

51/53 Sean McDermott Street 

Dublin 1 

 

 

5th February 2018 

 

To the Chairperson and Members of  

The Central Area Committee. 

 

 

Central Area Age Friendly Report – February 2018 

 

There will be two Age Friendly events held in 2018 by the Central Area Office in partnership with 

Dublin Central Library.  

(1) ‘Health and well being for Over 55’s’ on 9th May 2018 

(2) ‘Technology and Over55’s’ on 7th November 2018 

 
 
 
 
 
Brian O’Connell 
 

Administrative Office 

Central Area 

 

  

 

 

 

 

Page 37



 

Page 38



CENTRAL AREA COMMITTEE 

DUBLIN CITY SPORT & WELLBEING PARTNERSHIP REPORT  

13TH  FEBRUARY 2018 

 

 The Lord Mayor's 5 Alive Challenge is back for 2018! The initiative is a partnership 
programme between Dublin City Sport & Wellbeing Partnership and the Lord 
Mayor’s Office. 
The Challenge is in its 6th year and has encouraged hundreds of people to take up 
regular exercise over the past 5 years. 
 
This year we are going back to our roots and have targeted people who are 
interested in taking up jogging or those who have started and need some 
encouragement to keep it going. For 2018, we have also introduced Mentors - 
people who have completed the Challenge in previous years and who will run with 
slower joggers/walkers and encourage them around the course. 
 
The Challenge is to complete 5 Dublin road races –  
 
Tom Brennan Memorial 5k New Year's Day Road Race on 1st January 
AXA Raheny 5 on 28th January 
BHAA Garda Cross Country 2 Mile/4 Mile on 3rd February 
MSB St. Patrick's Festival 5k Race and Family Fun Run on 18th March 
BHAA Dublin City Council 10k race on 7th April 
 
If for some reason someone can't complete one of these races, they can substitute 
for one of the parkruns organised by parkrun Ireland. 

 

 Older Adults Chair Aerobics Class - a free physical activity programme aimed at 

older adults in a community setting.  This class combines a series of aerobic, 

strength, balance & flexibility components to ensure older adults keep active no 

matter what their age.  For further details or to sign up please contact our HSE 

Health Promotion & Improvement Officer, David Phelan, at 01-2227734/087-

6525001 or david.phelan6@mail.dcu.ie 

Area Venue Start date Days & Times 

East Wall 

Sean O’Casey Centre 

St. Mary’s Rd. 

East Wall, Dublin 3 

Thursday January 

11th at 2:30pm 

Every Thursday at 

2:30pm for 12 

weeks 

Page 39

https://www.facebook.com/TBM5kNewYearsDayRace/?fref=mentions
https://www.facebook.com/axaraheny5/?fref=mentions
https://www.facebook.com/BHAA-375711882376/?fref=mentions
https://www.facebook.com/msbpatricks5k/?fref=mentions
https://www.facebook.com/BHAA-375711882376/?fref=mentions
https://www.facebook.com/DublinCityCouncil/?fref=mentions
https://www.facebook.com/parkrunEire/?fref=mentions
mailto:david.phelan6@mail.dcu.ie


 
 

 Thrive 
Thrive is a programme geared towards engaging people with mental health 
difficulties. This can range from people who suffer with anxiety or depression right 
through to people who may have suffered an acquired brain injury and need 
assistance in re-integrating into their communities from a personal independence, 
social & general wellbeing viewpoint.  
Thrive programmes currently taking place in the Central Area include: 
 
What: Yoga  
Who: HSE Mental Health Referrals  
Where: Ballybough Sports & Community Centre  
Dates: 1st, 8th February 
Time: 12pm - 1pm 
 
What: Sports & Fitness  
Who: Adult Mental Health Group 
Where: Ballybough Sports & Community Centre  
Dates: : 2nd, 9th February 
Time: 12pm - 1pm 

 
 

 Men on the Move 
This is a FREE physical activity programme aimed at adult men of all ages who have 
been inactive for a sustained period and want to get back to exercising and 
improving their fitness levels. It involves regular exercise sessions made up of a 
combination of aerobic, strength & flexibility components. DCSWP Sports Officer, 
Derek Ahern, is delivering a ‘Box-Fit Circuit Class’ on Saturday mornings at 10.30am 
in Ballybough Sports & Community Centre under the Men on the Move banner. 
Classes can accommodate all fitness levels and feature Irish Elite Senior Champion 
Emmet Brennan. 
 
 
Change for Life 
This Programme is for age 18+ and works on working on many forms of fitness 
health and wellbeing. It runs for 7 weeks starting on 19th Jan for and is in partnership 
with Healthy Ireland & HSE.  Venue Aughrim St. Wednesday, Thursday ,Friday 10am 
 
Also beginning on 24th Jan in Sheriff St. is a Tai Chi Programme for wormen 18+ which 
is ongoing.  This takes place on Wednesday 12-1pm. 
 
 
Champions  
This Programme is aimed and adults with intellectural disabilities and is run in 
partnership with Clontraf Remedial Clinic as is ongoing from 5th Jan.   
Venue: Ballybough Community Centre Friday 3-4pm  

Page 40



 
 
YouthFit  
This programme is a multisports after schools programme starting on the 2nd Feb.  It 
is run in conjunction with Ballybough Youth Service and is ongoing in the current 
school term.  Venue: Ballybough Community Centre, Fridays 3-4pm 
 
 
Get Dublin Walking 
This Programme is for all ages runs for 7 weeks starting on 25th Jan.  It is run in 
partnership with Healthy Ireland & HSE.  Venue Aughrim St. Thursday 10am 
 
 
 
 

FAI/DCSWP Football Development Officer’s Update 

 Walking Football for older adults takes place every Tuesday from 11am – 12.30pm in 
Cabra Parkside Community Sports Complex, catering for a number of participants 
from the Central Area 
 

 A football session for young people associated with Stoneybatter Youth Service 
takes place every Wednesday in Aughrim Street Sports Centre from 3pm – 4.30pm. 
 

 A Schools Coaching Session is taking place in St. Gabriels NS D7 Time 11am-12.30pm 

 

 Secondary School coaching sessions are taking place St Joseph’s Secondary Girls 

School LCA football coaching programme/ Time 9.30-11.30 pm 

 

 Social Inclusion Sessions, where foreign nationals are encouraged to come and play 
football alongside locals, take place on Monday afternoons in Ballybough 
Community Centre and Wednesday afternoons in Sheriff Street Recreation Centre. 

 

 Drop in Futsal continues every Tuesday from 3.30pm to 5pm in Aughrim Street 
Sports Centre for boys & girls aged 6 – 9 years from the local area and beyond 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 41



Boxing 

 The Community Boxing Development Officer will commence roll out of the StartBox 
Silver Programme in the following schools over the coming weeks:  

St Josephs Fairview, Marino College TYs Mixed gender, Casa Caterina Cabra, D7 

Educate Together, O Connells Primary Boys NCR, St Lawrence O Toole's Sherrif 

Street, Christ the King BNS Cabra, Mount Carmel TY Girls Dorset Street 

 
 

General 
 

 What: Women’s Fitness Group  
Who: Open to All   
Where: Aughrim Street Sportshall  
When: 2nd, 9th February 
Time: 10am – 11.30pm 

 

 What: Functional Fitness 
Who: Older Adults 
Where: East Wall Recreation Centre 
Date:  6th, 13th February  
Time: 9.30am – 10.30am 

 

 The local DCSWP Sports Officer is currently delivering an After-School Sports Drop-In 
in Dominick Street on Wednesdays from 3pm – 4pm and St. Michan’s House on 
Fridays from 2.30pm – 4pm. 
 

 Swimming Lessons 
The local DCSWP Sports Officer, in partnership with the Swim Ireland Participation 
Officer, is delivering swimming lessons for young people in the area every 
Wednesday from 4pm – 6pm in Sean McDermott Street Swimming Pool. This 
initiative is open to local community groups, youth services & after-school services.  

 
 

Ballybough Community Centre 
 

 Ballybough wins the overall Community Excellence Award with the Public Sector 
Magazine 
 

 Dublin City Intercultural Language Centre offers free English classes to help 
participants become comfortable with various aspects of life in Ireland (work, health, 
education, culture etc…). Classes take place on a weekly basis from 10am – 12pm 
Monday through Thursday. 
  

 Gym prices and full timetable available online www.ballyboughcommunitycentre.ie 

Page 42

http://www.ballyboughcommunitycentre.ie/


 
Rowing 

 

 Get Going … Get Rowing 
This initiative, jointly supported by DCSWP, Sport Ireland, Healthy Ireland, Active 
School Flag & Trinity College, has been successfully rolled out for a number of years 
by Rowing Ireland’s Leinster Women’s Development Officer, Michelle Carpenter. 
This is a 4/6 week school’s programme for girls (second level). Rowing Ireland 
provide rowing machines and a community coach to the schools. 
 
A Transition Year Programme gives students the opportunity to get on the first step 
of the coaching ladder and enables them to be involved in a youth leadership role, 
working in a fun and interactive environment with younger students and hence, 
bringing value to the school. 

 

 Olympic Values Education Programme (accompanies above programme) 
Students will be taught values such as fair play, respect, dignity etc… through rowing. 
Get Going ... Get Rowing will be the first programme in Ireland to roll this out.  

 

Rugby Development Officer Update 

 After the success of the Women’s Rugby World Cup, the local Leinster Rugby/DCSWP 
Development Officer is currently delivering tag rugby sessions in two girls’ schools 
while encouraging anyone who shows enthusiasm/talent for the sport to join the 
local club.  
 

 In February the Rugby Development Officer will be going into the non-traditional rugby 

playing schools to help them get set up for the County Council Cup. 

 

 The local Leinster Rugby/DCSWP Development Officer has started fundamental 
movement sessions and tag rugby with a group in Ballybough Community Centre in 
an effort to improve their mental health & general wellbeing. The sessions will run 
every few weeks depending on the group’s needs. 
 
 
Cricket 
 

 Our Cricket Development Officer is liaising with DCSWP Sports Officers in the area to 
plan programmes for the coming months. 

 

 Provincial cricket sessions will be on Friday nights from 5.00pm-9.30pm in North 

County Cricket Club where we have a number of players from the Central Area 

involved in these sessions and in particular, players around the Drumcondra area. 

Players are between 10-18 years of age. 

Page 43



 

 Sessions will also take place in Ardscoil Ris secondary school. (Days and times TBC). 

 

 Mid Term Sessions will be taking place on the 14th, 15th and 16th of February from 

10.30am-4.15pm in North County Cricket Club for the U12’s U14’s and U17’s for any 

clubs that are in the Central area and in particular, players around the Drumcondra 

area. 

 
 
 

Contact details 
 
Antonia Martin, DCSWP Programmes & Services Development Manager: 

antonia.martin@dublincity.ie  

Alan Morrin, Acting Staff Officer, DCSWP: david.moran@dublincity.ie  

Mitch Whitty, Sports Officer: mitch.whitty@dublincity.ie  

Derek Ahern, Sports Officer: derek.ahern@dublincity.ie  

John Sweeney, Sports Officer: john.sweeney@dublincity.ie  

Treacy Byrne, Ballybough Centre Manager: treacy.byrne@dublincity.ie  

Ian Hill, Soccer: ian.hill@fai.ie  

Tommy Carberry, Soccer: tommy.carberry@fai.ie  

Paul Quinn, Boxing: paulquinn999@gmail.com  

Fintan McAllister, Cricket: fintan.mcallister@cricketleinster.ie  

Stephen Maher, Rugby: stephen.maher@leinsterrugby.ie  

 

Report by 

David Moran 

Dublin City Sport & Wellbeing Partnership 

Page 44

mailto:antonia.martin@dublincity.ie
mailto:mitch.whitty@dublincity.ie
mailto:derek.ahern@dublincity.ie
mailto:john.sweeney@dublincity.ie
mailto:treacy.byrne@dublincity.ie
mailto:ian.hill@fai.ie
mailto:tommy.carberry@fai.ie
mailto:paulquinn999@gmail.com
mailto:fintan.mcallister@cricketleinster.ie
mailto:stephen.maher@leinsterrugby.ie


Central Area Discretionary Funding 2018

Proposal Proposed Allocation

H.O.P.E. (Counsellor) €40,000

Dominick Street Knitting Club €3,000

Hardwicke Garden Club €1,000

Hardwicke Soccer Club €1,000

Hardwicke Womens' Group €1,000

CCTV Installation, Spring Garden Street & Courtney Place €15,000

Stanhope Convent Drama Group €10,000

An Siol €40,000

Grangegorman Project €10,000

Prussia Street Parish Centre €15,000

Great Western Square Serenity Group €1,500

Drumalee Public Realm Project €20,000

Caledon Road Re-surfacing works €60,000

Fitzgibbon Court playground enhancement €25,000

Courtney Place playground enhancement €15,000

Russell Avenue Recreation Centre €3,000

Sean O'Casey Centre Seniors Bus €10,000

Kirwan Street Cottages Re-surfacing works €60,000

Leo Avenue Re-surfacing works €30,000

Josephine Avenue Re-surfacing works €35,000

Sitric Road Re-surfacing works €60,000

Dunne Street Re-surfacing works €60,000

Sean McDermott Street TAEKWONDO Club €15,000

Francesca Arkins Dance Troupe €15,000

Dublin Circus Project €5,000

2018 Commemorations €30,000

Bhlain na Gaelige €20,000

Education Assistance Grant - Master & Phd Level €25,000

Willie Halpin's Rifle €4,150

Magdalen Fund with specific criteria €30,000

Corinthians Boxing Club (pending legal issues) €15,000

Bereavement Grant €10,000

Scoil Chaomhain €35,000

Oxmantown Road Public Realm Improvement Works €20,000

Dominick Court windows €80,000

An Goilin €3,000

Sports Programme for females (Pending 2017 Report) €50,000

D7 SCP Bus €30,000

Phibsborough LEIP €80,000

Kevin Barry House play area €7,000

Aughrim Court improvements & CCTV upgrade €15,000

Summerhill Senior Citizens - CCTV upgrade €6,000

James Larkin House CCTV system upgrade €15,000

Liberty House playground re-surfacing €10,000

St. Michan's House Community Centre €40,000

Local Theatre Groups €15,000

Page 45



Simms Conference Group €5,000

Linenhall Parade footpaths €20,000

Total €1,115,650

Page 46



Scheme/Activity Length Area Contract Direct Lab Length Area Contract Direct Lab Contract Direct Lab Length Area ContractDirect LabLength Area ContractDirect LabContract Direct Lab

Asphalt Carriageway - DRAFT €1,014,000

Gardiner Street Lower (Sean Mc D St-Beresford Pl.)

Dorset Street (Sections between Gardiner St & Nth Frederick St)

North Quays (Patching Ellis Quay Arran Quay & Custom House Quay)

Samuel Beckett Bridge

Waterloo Avenue

Arranmore Avenue

Berkeley Road (junctions of Geraldine St. & Berkeley Pl.)

Drumcondra Road lower -

(patches between Hollybank Road & Clonliffe Rd.)

Footpath- DRAFT €180,000 €50,000

North Circular Road(Cabra Rd. - Prussia St.) Various Locations

Clonliffe Road

Belvidere Road

Bow Street(Ramp Reconstruction)

Talbot Place/Store Street (Ramp Reconstruction)

Cathal Bruagh Street

Other- DRAFT

Bridge Maintenance €10,000

Winter Maintenance €20,000 €20,000

Name-plates €10,000 €10,000 €10,000 €20,000

Ramp Maintenance €20,000 €10,000 €20,000 €10,000

Miscellaneous Gullies €15,000 €15,000

Miscellaneous Direct Labour €280,000 €280,000

Totals - DRAFT 0 €1,014,000 0 €180,000 €0 €40,000 €335,000 0 €0 0 €50,000 €30,000 €345,000

Area Contract Direct Lab

Regional Carriageway Improvements 0 €1,014,000 €0

Regional Footway Improvements 0 €180,000 €0

Regional Other €40,000 €335,000

Local Carriageway Improvements 0 €0 €0

Local Footway Improvements 0 €50,000 €0

Local Other €30,000 €345,000

Totals €1,314,000 €680,000

Road Maintenance Services Works Programme 2018- DRAFT

Local OtherCentral Area Regional Carriageway Improvements Regional Footway Improvements Regional Other
Local Carriageway 

Improvements

Local Footway 

Improvements

P
age 47





 

 

 

 

Central Area Parks Budget 2018 

 

 

Croppies Memorial 

Park 

Upgrading of the Water feature  €100,000 

Croppies Acre Painting of Railings €12,000 

   

Blessington Basin Ongoing upgrading to maintain Green Flag 

Status 

€30,000 

   

  €142,000 

 

 

Page 49





 

Central Area Office 

51/53 Sean McDermott Street Lower 

Dublin 1 

      

8
th

 February, 2018 

The Chairperson and Members of 

Central Area Committee 

With reference to a proposal to initiate the procedure for the Extinguishment of the Public Right 

of Way over a laneway to the rear of 50 to 55 North Great Clarence Street and to the rear of 6-12 

North William Street, Dublin 1. 

 

Proposal  

A request to have the public right of way extinguished over a laneway to the rear of 50 to 55 North 

Great Clarence Street and to the rear of 6-12 North William Street, Dublin 1 has been made. The 

reason for this extinguishment is to eliminate anti-social behaviour in the laneway. The extent of this 

proposed extinguishment is shown on the attached Drawing RM 36950. 

 

Service Checks 

A service check will be undertaken to establish what (if) any are located on these areas. Suitable 

arrangements will be put in place prior to completion of this proposal. 

 

Statutory Requirement 

The statutory procedure involves giving public notice of the proposal in one or more newspapers 

circulating in the City and the affixing of that notice at each end of the right of way for a period of not 

less than 14 days.  Any objections or representations made and not withdrawn shall be considered.  

The extinguishment of a public right of way is a function reserved to the elected members of the City 

Council. 

 

Recommendation 

I recommend that procedures be initiated under Section 73 of the Roads Act 1993 to extinguish the 

public right of way over the area indicated on attached Drawing.  

 

Rose Kenny 
Executive Manager 
Central Area 
 
 

Page 51



 

Page 52



 

To the Members of the Area Committee 

Central Area   
 

 

 
 

____________________________________________________________________                                    

Community Grants Scheme 2018 

 

Applications for financial assistance have been received from a number of bodies under the City Council's 

Community Grants Scheme 2018. 

These applications have been assessed in the context of available finance, value to the community and 

compliance with the relevant policies and objectives of the Council and in particular with relevance to the 

Social Inclusion Strategy. 

Set out below are details of the applications together with recommendations in relation to the amount of grant 

assistance for each applicant body. 

It is recommended that Dublin City Council make the grants to the groups as set out in the report below.  

There is provision in the 2018 budget to meet this expenditure. 

 

 

_______________________________ 

Brendan Kenny 

Assistant Chief Executive 

 

Date:  1
st
 February 2018 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 53



CENTRAL AREA 2018 COMMUNITY GRANTS 
 

  Group Name Category Amount Recommended 

Acts of Compassion Ministries Integration  €                             350.00  

An Siol Summer Programme Older Persons  €                             250.00  

Aosóg Children / Young People  €                             550.00  

Avondale House Group Children / Young People  €                             300.00  

Ballybough Boxing & Sports Club Children / Young People  €                             250.00  

Ballybough Brownies & Guides Children / Young People  €                             300.00  

Ballybough Community Group Children / Young People  €                             350.00  

Ballybough/North Strand Local History Group Educational  €                         1,000.00  

Barbara Ward Clonliffe & Croke Park 
Community Centre Environmental  €                             500.00  

Barbara Ward Clonliffe & Croke Park 
Community Centre Older Persons  €                             500.00  

Berkeley Environment Awareness Group Environmental  €                             500.00  

Bí Urban Environmental  €                             500.00  

Blackhall Parade Childrens Project/Little 
Stars Creche Children / Young People  €                             250.00  

Blacquiere Villas Environmental Group Environmental  €                             250.00  

Blend Residents Association Social Inclusion  €                             375.00  

Bricins Park Art & Crafts Recreation  €                             250.00  

Broadstone community Garden Environmental  €                             350.00  

Broadstone Focus Action Group Environmental  €                             350.00  

CARA 
 

 €                             400.00  

Carmichael Centre for Voluntary Groups Environmental  €                             250.00  

Charmed with Rythmn Children / Young People  €                             250.00  

Complex Youth Theatre Children / Young People  €                             250.00  

Daisy Days Community Childcare Children / Young People  €                             350.00  

Damer & Fortick Charity Festival / Event  €                             300.00  

Developing Alternative Values Ltd Educational  €                             250.00  

Docklands Business Forum Environmental  €                             500.00  

Dominic Street Crochet Recreation  €                             200.00  

Dominick Court Senior Citizens Older Persons  €                             250.00  

Dominick Street Afterschool Club Children / Young People  €                             250.00  

Drumalee Art Group Older Persons  €                             250.00  

Dublin Central Mission Open Doors Social Inclusion  €                             250.00  

Dublin Simon Community Environmental  €                             300.00  

East Wall Art Group Recreation  €                             200.00  

East Wall Garden Club Older Persons  €                             350.00  

East Wall PEG Drama Variety Group Social Inclusion  €                             250.00  

East Wall Pottery Group Recreation  €                             200.00  

East Wall Recreation Centre Recreation  €                             500.00  

East Wall Residents Association Festival / Event  €                             300.00  

East Wall Rovers Children / Young People  €                             250.00  

East Wall Water Sports Group Recreation  €                             250.00  

East Wall Youth Children / Young People  €                             250.00  

Page 54



Father Scully Residents Association Social Inclusion  €                             250.00  

Flower Pot Ladies Environmental  €                             300.00  

George's Place Environmental Environmental  €                             300.00  

George's Place Knitting Group Recreation  €                             200.00  

Geraldine Street Residents Association Environmental  €                             200.00  

Great Western Square & District Residents 
Assoc. Festival / Event  €                             375.00  

Infirmary Road Garden/Montpelier Gds 
Infirmary Rd Res Assoc. Environmental  €                             375.00  

Irish United Veterans Association Environmental  €                             1000.00  

Irvine Terrace Area Action Group(ITAAG) Environmental  €                             250.00  

ISKCON (RATHA YATRA FESTIVAL CHARIOTS)  Festival / Event  €                             250.00  

James Larkin Community Group Recreation  €                             250.00  

Just Ask Children / Young People  €                             250.00  

Killarney Court Sheltered Housing Older Persons  €                             250.00  

Lilys Adventure Playschool Children / Young People  €                             250.00  

Lourdes Day Care Centre Festival / Event  €                             750.00  

Lower Dorset Street Community Group Recreation  €                             250.00  

LYCS Creche Children / Young People  €                             250.00  

Macro Building Management CLG Children / Young People  €                             300.00  

Macro Building Management CLG Children / Young People  €                             300.00  

Macro Building Management CLG Environmental  €                             500.00  

Macro Building Management CLG/Over 55's 
Club Older Persons  €                             250.00  

Manor Street/Stoneybatter Tidy Districts 
Assoc. Environmental  €                             375.00  

Mary's Abbey Community Garden Environmental  €                             300.00  

Monck Place Street Flowers Environmental  €                             200.00  

Montpelier Hill Residents Association Environmental  €                             375.00  

Mud Island Community Garden Environmental  €                         1,000.00  

Nascadh CDP Ltd/East Wall Bowls Club Recreation  €                             250.00  

Nascadh CDP Ltd/East Wall Ghost Walk 
Parade Festival / Event  €                             500.00  

Nascadh CDP Ltd/Intergenerational projects Integration  €                             300.00  

Nascadh CDP Ltd/Irish Culture Festival Festival / Event  €                             250.00  

Nascadh CDP Ltd/Mens Games Room Social Inclusion  €                             200.00  

Nascadh CDP LTD/Newsletter Social Inclusion  €                             275.00  

Nascadh CDP Ltd/Over 55's Monday Club Older Persons  €                             200.00  

Nascadh CDP Ltd/Seniors Summer Project Older Persons  €                             300.00  

North East Central Community Garden Festival / Event  €                             500.00  

North Inner City Older Persons Group 
 

 €                             300.00  

North Wall Community Association Festival / Event  €                             500.00  

North William Street Gardening Committee Environmental  €                             300.00  

O'Brien Hall Group 
 

 €                             250.00  

Palatine Square Environmental  €                             500.00  

Peadar Kearney House Youth Group Children / Young People  €                             300.00  

Pitter Patter Community Creche CLG Children / Young People  €                             250.00  

Page 55



Portland Place & Residents Association Festival / Event  €                             300.00  

Presentation Primary School George's Hill Environmental  €                             500.00  

Pride of Place Clean-up Environmental  €                            NIL  

Pride of Place Stoneybatter Festival / Event  €                             300.00  

Pride of Place Stoneybatter Festival Festival / Event  €                         1,000.00  

Rainbow 13+Arch Club People with a Disability  €                             250.00  

Rathdown Road & District Association Social Inclusion  €                             275.00  

Rathdown Road & District Residents 
Association Recreation  €                             250.00  

Richmond Cottages & District Res. & Tenants 
Assoc. Festival / Event  €                             350.00  

Rutland Primary School-Parents Association Environmental  €                             300.00  

SAOL Project  Social Inclusion  €                             250.00  

Scoil Chaoimhín Children / Young People  €                             300.00  

Sean O'Casey Day Care Social Inclusion  €                             250.00  

Sean O'Casey Theatre Recreation  €                             500.00  

Serenity Community Garden Environmental  €                             500.00  

Seven Dwarfs Community Playgroup Ltd. Children / Young People  €                             250.00  

Sherrard Avenue Residents Association Environmental  €                             300.00  

Sophia Housing Environmental  €                             300.00  

St Gabriel's National School Environmental  €                             250.00  

St Josephs Y.C.F.C 
 

 €                             200.00  

St Laurence O'Toole Junior Boys School Children / Young People  €                             200.00  

St Michans House Residents Association Festival / Event  €                             500.00  

St Peter's Mens Shed Recreation  €                             350.00  

St Vincent's G.N.S Gardners Educational  €                             300.00  

Step by Step Child & Family Project Children / Young People  €                             250.00  

Stoneybatter & Smithfield People's History 
Project Educational  €                             500.00  

Stoneybatter Pride of Place-Environment  Environmental  €                             NIL  

Stoneybatter Women's Group Recreation  €                             200.00  

Streetline  Environmental  €                             350.00  

Tae kwon-do Club Children / Young People  €                             500.00  

The Bealtaine Writers Educational  €                             350.00  

The Fillies Older Persons  €                             250.00  

The Five Lamps Arts Festival Festival / Event  €                         1,000.00  

The Kiln Forge Tenants Group Children / Young People  €                             250.00  

The Snug Counselling Services Educational  €                             200.00  

Tuesday Club Aughrim Court Older Persons  €                             250.00  

Uncut Diamond Players Recreation  €                             500.00  

Wednesday Afternoon Senior Ladies Club Older Persons  €                             250.00  

  
 €                       41,125.00  

   INFORMAL ADULT EDUCATION  
  Charleville Mall Art Group Informal Adult Education  €                             252.19  

Drumalee Ladies Group Informal Adult Education  €                             252.19  

Plain & Purl Knitting Group Informal Adult Education  €                             252.19  

Page 56



Aosóg Informal Adult Education  €                             252.19  

Dublin Simon Community Informal Adult Education  €                             252.19  

Gateway Project Informal Adult Education  €                             504.38  

Lourdes Youth & community Services Informal Adult Education  €                             504.38  

Lourdes Youth & Community Service Informal Adult Education  €                             504.38  

Laurence O'Toole Art Class Informal Adult Education  €                             504.38  

Dublin Drawing Informal Adult Education  €                             504.38  

East Wall Youth Informal Adult Education  €                             504.38  

Henrietta Adult & Community Education 
Service Informal Adult Education  €                             504.38  

Barbara Ward Clonliffe Park Community 
Centre Informal Adult Education  €                             504.38  

Aosóg Informal Adult Education  €                             504.38  

Dublin Simon Community Informal Adult Education  €                             504.38  

Hill Street Family Resource Centre Informal Adult Education  €                             756.57  

Macro building Management CLG Informal Adult Education  €                             756.57  

Ozanam House Informal Adult Education  €                             756.57  

Holy Family Parish Centre Informal Adult Education  €                             756.57  

East Wall Art Group Informal Adult Education  €                             756.57  

Lourdes Day Care Centre Informal Adult Education  €                             756.57  

  
 €                       10,844.17  

   TOM CLARKE BRIDGE FUND 
  North Port Dwellers Association Tom Clarke Bridge  €                             500.00  

ASESP/Smallies Tom Clarke Bridge  €                             500.00  

St Laurence O'Tooles Junior Boys School Tom Clarke Bridge  €                             500.00  

Lourdes Day Care Centre Tom Clarke Bridge  €                             500.00  

East Wall Garden Club Tom Clarke Bridge  €                             800.00  

ASESP/Busy Beez Tom Clarke Bridge  €                             800.00  

ASESP/Lillarriers Tom Clarke Bridge  €                             850.00  

St Joseph's Co-Ed Primary Tom Clarke Bridge  €                         1,000.00  

Irvine Terrace Area Action Group Tom Clarke Bridge  €                         1,000.00  

North Wall community Association Tom Clarke Bridge  €                         1,000.00  

Nascadh CDP LTD (Halloween & 
International) Tom Clarke Bridge  €                         1,000.00  

East Wall Pottery Group(PEG) Tom Clarke Bridge  €                         1,000.00  

ASESP/Wonder Kidz Tom Clarke Bridge  €                         1,000.00  

ASESP/The Den & Afterschools Groups Tom Clarke Bridge  €                         1,000.00  

St Joseph's Y.C.F.C Tom Clarke Bridge  €                         1,000.00  

East Wall Rovers Tom Clarke Bridge  €                         1,000.00  

East Wall Water Sports Group Tom Clarke Bridge  €                         1,500.00  

Nascadh CDP LTD Tom Clarke Bridge  €                         2,000.00  

Swan Youth Service Summer Programme Tom Clarke Bridge  €                         2,000.00  

East Wall Summer Project Tom Clarke Bridge  €                         2,500.00  

St Laurence O'Toole Community Group Tom Clarke Bridge  €                         2,500.00  

East Wall PEG Drama Variety Group Tom Clarke Bridge  €                         2,500.00  

Daisy Days Community Childcare Tom Clarke Bridge  €                         3,000.00  

Page 57



East Wall Men's Shed Tom Clarke Bridge  €                         5,000.00  

The Cavan Centre Tom Clarke Bridge  €                         5,000.00  

The Five Lamps Arts Festival Tom Clarke Bridge  €                         5,000.00  

Sean O'Casey Community Centre Tom Clarke Bridge  €                         7,500.00  

St Mary's Youth Club Tom Clarke Bridge  €                       10,000.00  

  
 €                       61,950.00  

 

 

 

 

 

Page 58



List of Motions  
13

th
 February, 2018 

 
 
 
Motion in the names of Councillor Janice Boylan and Councillor Gaye Fagan 
 

That this Area Committee calls on Kieran Mulvey and the Government to reconsider 
the decision to spend 600 thousand Euro on the up keep/repair of a bridge when we 
all have vital projects in the North Inner City on the verge of extinction due to the lack 
of funding supports. 
 
Motion in the names of Councillor Janice Boylan and Councillor Gaye Fagan 
 

That this Area Committee calls again on the Taoiseach to respond to a previous 
request to allocate the same amount of funding that was allocated in the North East 
Inner City to the North West Inner City to deal with the serious issues relating to crime 
and gun violence. 
 
Motion in the name of Councillor Nial Ring 
 

That this Committee recommends that Dublin City Council, insofar as practicable, 
immediately arrange for the implementation of those recommendations contained in 
the Moore Street Report to the Minister for Culture, Heritage and the Gaeltacht 
(March 2017 – Chapter 7) relating to the Moore Street Market and the traders there, 
which are reflective of, complementary to and in line with DCC’s own policy statement 
in relation to this historic street market. 
 
 

Page 59




	Agenda
	1 With reference to the minutes of the Central Area Committee meeting held on 9th January, 2018
	Motions with Replies Dec 17

	2 Questions to the Area Manager
	5 With reference to the proposed disposal of plot of ground at 9 Granby Place, Dublin 1
	Feb - 9 Granby Place, Dublin 1

	6 With reference to the minutes of the Traffic Advisory Group held on 30th January, 2018
	7 With reference to updates on the following - Public Domain Section, North East Inner City Programme Office, North West and North East Inner City Housing Office, Grangegorman Development, Central Area Age Friend and Central Area Sports Report
	Central Area Committee February 2018 NEIC Programme Office
	Housing Report Feb 2018
	February_18_report GGDA
	Age_Friendly_report_February_ 2018
	CAC Sports Report 13 FEB 2018

	8 With reference to the Central Area Discretionary Fund 2018
	9 With reference to Central Area Works Programmes  - Parks and Roads Maintenance 2018
	Works Programme 2018 Parks

	10 With reference to a proposal to initiate the procedure for the Extinguishment of the Public Right of Way over a laneway to the rear of 50 to 55 North Great Clarence Street and to the rear of 6-12 North William Street, Dublin 1.
	11 With reference to Central Area Community Grants Scheme 2018
	12 With reference to Motions to the Area Manager



